
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 
 

THURSDAY 13TH DECEMBER 2012 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
CONFERENCE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), J. S. Brogan (Vice-
Chairman), Ms. M. T. Buxton, Dr. B. T. Cooper, S. J. Dudley, 
Miss P. A. Harrison and Mrs. H. J. Jones 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held 
on 20th September 2012 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. Audit Commission Annual Governance Report 2011 - 2012 (Pages 7 - 36) 
 

5. Corporate Risk Register / Risk Management - Presentation from the Head of 
Finance & Resources  
 

6. Benefits Investigations April - September 2012 (Pages 37 - 48) 
 

7. Internal Audit Manager's - Draft Audit Plan 2013 / 2014 (Pages 49 - 58) 
 

8. Audit Board Work Programme 2012 / 2013 (Pages 59 - 60) 
 
To consider the Board’s work programme for the current municipal year.  
 

9. Internal Audit Monitoring Report (Pages 61 - 70) 
 



- 2 - 

10. To consider, and if considered appropriate, to pass the following resolution to 
exclude the public from the meeting during the consideration of items of 
business containing exempt information:-  
 
"RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the 
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraphs of that part being as set out below, 
and that it is in the public interest to do so:- 
 

Item No. Paragraphs  
9                    7       “       

 
• Appendices 3 and 4 for Agenda Item 9 – Internal Audit Monitoring Report 

(Pages 71 - 84) 
 
11. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 

Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 
 
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
5th December 2012 
 



- 3 - 

 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

Ø You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

Ø You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

Ø You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

Ø You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

Ø An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

Ø A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

Ø You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

Ø Meeting Agendas 
Ø Meeting Minutes 
Ø The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 
 

THURSDAY, 20TH SEPTEMBER 2012 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), J. S. Brogan (Vice-Chairman), 
Ms. M. T. Buxton, Dr. B. T. Cooper, Miss P. A. Harrison (during Minute 
No's 16/12 to part of 22/12) and Mrs. H. J. Jones 
 

  
 Officers: Ms. J. Pickering, Mr. A. Bromage and Mrs. P. Ross 

 
 

16/12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor S. J. Dudley 
 

17/12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The following declarations of interest were made: 
 
Item 7 – Audits in Progress as at 31st March 2012, Parks and Open 
Spaces (Fieldwork stage) 
 
Councillors L. C. R. Mallett and Ms. M. T. Buxton each declared an other 
disclosable interest as ward members for Whitford, ward area for Sanders 
Park and that Councillor L. C. R. Mallett had been involved in a number of 
projects for Sanders Park.  
 

18/12 MINUTES  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 21st June 2012 were 
submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

19/12 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER  
 
The Board considered a report which detailed the Corporate Risk Register and 
the current arrangements for risk management within the Council. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources introduced the 
report and in doing so informed Members that the Corporate Risk Register, as 
detailed at Appendix 1 to the report, had been developed and agreed by the 
Corporate Management Team following consideration of potential risks that 
could affect the Council.   
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Audit Board 
20th September 2012 

 

Members were further informed that officers were currently developing 
Departmental Risk Registers and that key issues on the Corporate Risk 
Register and Departmental Risk Registers would be reported back to the 
Board on a quarterly basis.  Following further discussion it was agreed that the 
high level actions on Departmental Risk Registers would be included within 
the quarterly reports for discussion, with the detailed Departmental Risk 
Registers provided for information periodically.   
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources responded to 
Members’ questions with regard to the six Corporate Risks identified and the 
scoring methodology.  Following further discussion the Executive Director, 
Finance and Corporate Resources was tasked with taking the comments of 
the Board and the additional risks identified, to be included within the 
Corporate Risk Register back to the Corporate Management Team as follows: 
 
• Members had expressed concern with regard to the Likelihood score of 1, 

Low, for the following: 
• Corporate Risk Reference 3 – Failure to realise the potential benefits of 
 implementing shared services 

 
• Corporate Risk Reference 4 – Failure to develop a vibrant Town Centre  

 
• Corporate Risk Reference 5 – Impact on the Council of a change in 
 political direction.  Do ongoing and regular discussions with all 
 members and more specifically Group Leaders take place? 

 
• Include the following within the Corporate Risk Register: 

• Safeguarding the Council’s reputation (reputational risk, treasury 
management, ombudsman and complaints)  

• Fraud 
• Further reduced funding from government 
 

The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources in response to 
Councillor Dr. B. T. Cooper confirmed that officers did undertake regular 
training to support future business continuity events. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that, subject to the comments and additional risks identified in the 

preamble above, the Corporate Risk Register be noted, and 
(b) that the Audit Board Work Programme be updated to include 

Corporate Risk Register and the high level actions from Departmental 
Risk Registers quarterly reports, with the Departmental Risk Registers 
to include a frontline service and a support service register.  Detailed 
Departmental Risk Registers to be provided for information 
periodically. 

 
20/12 AUDIT BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012 / 2013  

 
The Board considered the Work Programme for 2012/2013.  
 

Page 2



Audit Board 
20th September 2012 

 

It was noted that the Audit Board no longer received the Statement of 
Accounts.  The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources 
informed the Board that since 2010 / 2011 the Statement of Accounts were 
presented at Cabinet, but she considered it would be useful for the Board to 
receive the Audit Commission Annual Governance report at the next meeting 
of the Board. 
 
RESOLVED that the Work Programme be updated to include the items 
discussed and agreed by the Board during the course of the meeting.  
 

21/12 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
The Board considered whether or not to exclude the public from the meeting 
for the consideration of Agenda Item No. 7; The Internal Audit Monitoring 
Report of the Acting Shared Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal 
Audit Shared Service.  The Acting Shared Service Manager had provided a 
combined report and the Chairman advised that the Board had considered 
whether the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public 
interest in disclosing the information, which the Board agreed it did not. 
 
RESOLVED that the public not be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of Agenda Item No. 7, Monitoring report of internal audit work 
and performance as at 31st August 2012, pages 13 to 20, and that this part of 
the report be placed in the public domain. 
 

22/12 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT (PAGES 13 TO 20)  
 
Mr. A. Bromage, Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service, Acting Audit 
Manager presented the report and in doing so informed Members that 
individual reports would be presented to future meetings of the Board and as 
agreed, further completed audits would be presented to the next meeting of 
the Audit Board. 
 
The Acting Audit Manager further informed Members that, as agreed at the 
meeting held on 21st June 2012, the Management of Data audit would be 
included in the 2012 / 2013 Audit Plan as part of the Governance audit. 
 
Audits in progress as at 31st August 2012 
The following audits had now been completed and would be presented to the 
next meeting of the Board: 

• Asset Management 2011-12 
• Street Scene 
• Parks and Open Spaces 

 
The Acting Audit Manager and the Executive Director, Finance and Corporate 
Resources responded to Members’ questions with regard to the Asset 
Management 2011-2012 audit and the updating of acquisition and disposals 
on the Finance Asset Register. 
 
 
 

Page 3



Audit Board 
20th September 2012 

 

Audit Days 
The Acting Audit Manager responded to Members’ concerns with regard to the 
total of 78 days that had been delivered against a target of 300 days for 2012 / 
2013.  He informed Members that work was still to be carried out for quarter 2 
and as detailed at Appendix 1 to the report the Core Financial Systems would 
be audited in quarters 3 and 4 which would account for almost a third of the 
plan.  Work was still continuing on quarter 2 so this would not be reflected in 
the figures.   
 
The Acting Audit Manager responded to the Chairman with regard to the Lead 
Auditor leaving the service and the potential impact this would have on the 
service for Bromsgrove.  The Acting Audit Manager informed Members that 
whenever there was a natural turnover the delivery of the service was re-
assessed in respect of its effectiveness and efficiency. He reassured Members 
that the audit team were now essentially resourced in order to deliver the audit 
plan in full for this year, and that the service was currently delivering more in 
comparison to the previous year. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources informed the Board 
that she had raised her concerns with the Acting Audit Manager in respect of 
the delivery of the audit plan 2012/2013 and that she now felt more assured 
with the delivery of the audit plan. 
 
The Acting Audit Manager responded to Members’ questions with regard to 
the potential of natural turnover and a possible shortage of staff.  Members 
were informed that any staff shortage due to natural turnover would be 
covered with agency staff and that additional costs would be met within the 
overall budget already set; there would be no additional cost implications.  
 
RESOLVED that the monitoring report of internal audit work and performance 
as at 31st August 2012 (pages 13 to 20), be noted.  
 
RECOMMENDATION that Cabinet be made aware of the concerns raised by 
the Board in respect of the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan 2012 / 2013. 
 

23/12 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
“RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following item of business of the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Act, as amended, the relevant paragraph of that part being as set out below, 
and that it is in the public interest to do so:- 
 
 Minute No.  Paragraph  

24 7             
25 7            “ 

 
 
 
 

Page 4



Audit Board 
20th September 2012 

 

24/12 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT (PAGES 21 TO 42)  
 
The Board considered a report which detailed the monitoring report of internal 
audit work and performance as at 31st March 2012, pages 21 to 42 and 
provided an update on Protecting the Public Purse checklist. 
 
Mr. A. Bromage, Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service, Acting Audit 
Manager presented the report and in doing so informed Members that 
individual reports would be presented to future meetings of the Board and as 
agreed, further completed audits would be presented at the next meeting of 
the Board. 
 
The Acting Audit Manager further informed Members that, as agreed at the 
Audit Board meeting held on 21st June 2012, the Management of Data audit 
would be included in the 2012 / 2013 Audit Plan as part of the Governance 
audit.   
 
Following further discussion on one of the audits being put on hold, Members 
requested that the Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources 
obtain further detailed information with regard to the reasons the audit was put 
on hold and report back to the Board. 
 
The Acting Audit Manager responded to Members’ questions with regard to 
the final Internal Audit Report for Worcestershire Regulatory Services and the 
Audit Opinion and Executive Summary as detailed in the report. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources responded to 
Members’ questions with regard to Performance Indicators and Contracts 
Register, as detailed at Appendix 4 to the report.  Members were assured that 
each department were aware of contracts held and therefore there was no 
potential risk to budgets.   
 
Protecting the Public Purse 
The Acting Audit Manager presented the completed self assessment checklist 
as requested during the Audit Board meeting on 21st June 2012.  The Acting 
Audit Manager informed Members that in order to provide assurance to the 
Board the checklist item was identified, a comment made and evidence shown 
in order to determine how the decision was determined.  Members were 
informed that item 9 should show ‘Yes’ in column two. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) the Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources be tasked to 
 check that Managers follow the ‘due process’ with regard to contracts 
 entered into and that the Legal Services Team see all  contracts 
 entered into.  The findings to be reported back to a future meeting of 
 the Audit Board; and 
(b) that the Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources and 
 Acting Audit Manager be tasked to provide further clarification with 
 Heads of Service on the questions raised with regard to the following 
 items and report back to the next meeting of the Board: 
 

Page 5



Audit Board 
20th September 2012 

 

Ø Item 17 – Housing Tenancy 
Ø Item 21 – Recruitment; and  

(c) that the monitoring report of internal audit work and performance as at 
 31st August 2012 (pages 21 to 42), be noted.  
 

25/12 FRAUD INVESTIGATION - VERBAL UPDATE  
 
(The Chairman agreed that this matter be raised as an urgent item, in light of 
further information received by the Executive Director, Finance and Corporate 
Resources). 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Corporate Resources provided Members 
with a further verbal update on the one case referred to in the Corporate Anti-
Fraud Performance Report 2010/2011. 
 
RESOLVED:  
(a) that the current and final position be noted and that the lessons learnt 
 be noted by the Senior Management Team with regard to this 
 investigation; and 
(b) that any future decisions with regard to potential Fraud Investigations 
 be made by the Chief Executive, Bromsgrove District Council and 
 Redditch Borough Council and the Section 151 Officer. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT BOARD    13TH DECEMBER 2012 
     
 

AUDIT COMMISSION ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2011/12 –
RESPONSES  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Roger Hollingworth    
Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes  
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   
Wards Affected  All 
Ward Councillor Consulted None specific  
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 To enable Members to consider the S151 Officer responses to the 

Annual Governance Report as attached at Appendix 1 for 2011/12 from 
the Audit Commission. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1  That the Board considers and notes the responses to the Annual 
Governance Report 2011/12  

 
2.2  That the Board requests a quarterly update to ensure that actions 

are being undertaken and monitored in an effective way.   
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 

 Financial Implications    
 

3.1 None other than those included in this report. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require that the Council 
complies with statutory accounting legislation and changes. 

 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
 
3.3 As part of the process for auditing the final accounts for 2011/12 the 

Audit Commission review our processes and procedures and make any 
recommendations that they feel may improve our service and 
accounting in the future.  There are 5 recommendations proposed by 
the Audit Commission that have been agreed by officers. These are  

 
• Review the shared service plans accounting arrangements in 

order to simplify the process 
• Improve risk management arrangements and reporting 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
AUDIT BOARD    13TH DECEMBER 2012 
     
 

• Continue to monitor the delivery of the Internal Audit plan 
• Review the format of the monitoring of savings as presented 

to officers and members 
• Review the benefits transformation with the aim to bring to a 

close 
 
3.4 The responses to the recommendations are included at Appendix 1 

and will form the basis for future updates to members in relation to the 
Annual Governance Report. The original Governance report as 
reported to Cabinet and Council in September 2012 is also attached at 
Appendix 2 for member’s information. 

  
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.5  None as a direct result of this report. 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 The corporate risk register includes the preparation of the accounts 

and the controls in place to ensure the accounts are treated in 
compliance with accounting standards. 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 

  Appendix 1 – Audit Commission – Annual Governance Report 2011/12 
 responses 

  Appendix 2 – Audit Commission – Annual Governance Report 2011/12  
   

.   
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Jayne Pickering – Exec Director Finance and Resources   
E Mail: j.pickering@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527-881400 
  

Page 8



A
p
p
en

d
ix
 1
 –
 A
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 Rec

o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
s 
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 1
 

S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s:
 th
e 
co
un
ci
l s
ho
ul
d 
re
vi
ew
 th
e 
w
ay
 it
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 
fo
r 
sh
ar
ed
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
to
 s
im
pl
ify
 th
e 
ac
co
un
tin
g 
pr
oc
es
s.
  

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 o
f F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 C
or
po
ra
te
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 H
ig
h 

 

D
at
e 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

C
o
m
m
en

ts
 A
 w
or
ks
ho
p 
is
 to
 b
e 
or
ga
ni
se
d 
in
 th
e 
ne
w
 y
ea
r 
w
ith
 in
te
rn
al
 fi
na
nc
e 
st
af
f a
nd
 e
xt
er
na
l a
ud
it 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 th
e 
w
ay
 th
at
 w
e 
ac
co
un
t f
or
 th
e 

sh
ar
ed
 s
er
vi
ce
. T
he
 is
su
e 
of
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 e
ac
h 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
fu
nd
s 
an
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
co
st
s 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 w
ith
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
w
ill
 b
e 

im
po
rt
an
t a
nd
 fo
cu
se
d 
on
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
se
ss
io
n.
 T
he
 r
es
ul
tin
g 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
sh
ou
ld
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 o
n 
bo
th
 s
id
es
 a
re
 h
ap
py
 a
nd
 u
nd
er
st
an
d 
th
e 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 a
nd
 th
at
 th
is
 c
an
 b
e 
pr
es
en
te
d 
to
 m
em
be
rs
 a
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 fi
na
nc
ia
l m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
s.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 2
 

R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em
en
t A
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
: m
or
e 
ro
bu
st
 r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em
en
t a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 p
ut
 in
 p
la
ce
. T
hi
s 
sh
ou
ld
 in
cl
ud
e 
a 
co
rp
or
at
e 
ris
k 
re
gi
st
er
 

hi
gh
lig
ht
in
g 
ris
ks
 a
nd
 m
iti
ga
tin
g 
ac
tio
ns
  

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 o
f F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 C
or
po
ra
te
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 H
ig
h 

 

D
at
e 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

C
o
m
m
en

ts
 O
ffi
ce
rs
 h
av
e 
al
re
ad
y 
co
m
m
en
ce
d 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f d
ep
ar
tm
en
ta
l r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s 
fo
r 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
by
 m
em
be
rs
 a
t f
ut
ur
e 
A
ud
it 
B
oa
rd
 m
ee
tin
gs
. 

T
he
 r
eg
is
te
rs
 w
ill
 b
e 
up
da
te
d 
on
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 b
as
is
 a
nd
 r
ep
or
te
d 
vi
a 
m
an
ag
em
en
t t
ea
m
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ct
io
ns
 a
re
 p
ut
 in
 p
la
ce
 to
 m
iti
ga
te
 r
is
k 
to
 th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 in
 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  I
nd
iv
id
ua
l r
eg
is
te
rs
 a
nd
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
po
rt
ed
 to
 th
e 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 a
t e
ac
h 
m
ee
tin
g.
 

R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 3
 

In
te
rn
al
 A
u
d
it
: 
Th

e 
sc
o
p
e 
an

d
 d
el
iv
er
y 
o
f 
in
te
rn
al
 w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
tin

u
e 
to
 b
e 
m
o
n
ito

re
d
.  

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 o
f F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 M
ed
iu
m
 

 

Page 9



D
at
e 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

C
o
m
m
en

ts
 T
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 h
as
 r
eg
ul
ar
 m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 th
e 
In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
m
an
ag
er
 to
 tr
ac
k 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
n 
th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 

A
ud
it 
P
la
n.
 It
 is
 u
nd
er
st
oo
d 
th
at
 th
e 
te
am
 h
av
e 
be
en
 r
es
ou
rc
ed
 to
 fu
ll 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
A
ud
its
. T
he
 A
ud
it 
m
an
ag
er
 w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 

to
 p
re
se
nt
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 r
ep
or
ts
 to
 th
is
 C
om
m
itt
ee
 a
t e
ac
h 
m
ee
tin
g 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
an
d 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
 a
ct
io
ns
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n.
 

 R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 4
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 r
ep
or
tin
g:
 th
e 
tr
an
sp
ar
en
cy
 o
f f
in
an
ci
al
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e 
im
pr
ov
ed
, i
n 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 d
et
ai
l a
ro
un
d 
pl
an
ne
d 
sa
vi
ng
s 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
in
 y
ea
r 

m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
es
e.
  

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 o
f F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 H
ig
h 

 

D
at
e 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

C
o
m
m
en

ts
 T
he
 b
ud
ge
t m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
vi
ew
ed
 fo
r 
20
13
/1
4 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 m
em
be
rs
 c
an
 id
en
tif
y 
sa
vi
ng
s 
be
in
g 
de
liv
er
ed
. T
he
 

re
vi
ew
 w
ill
 in
cl
ud
e 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
of
 a
ny
 r
ev
is
ed
 r
ep
or
ts
 b
y 
th
e 
E
xt
er
na
l A
ud
ito
rs
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 
le
ve
l o
f d
et
ai
l i
s 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 fo
r 
th
e 
fu
tu
re
 fi
na
nc
ia
l 

pl
an
ni
ng
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il.
 

  R
ec
o
m
m
en

d
at
io
n
 5
 

H
o
u
si
n
g
 b
en

ef
it
s 
tr
an

sf
o
rm

at
io
n
: 
th
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l s
h
o
u
ld
 fo

rm
al
ly
 r
ev
ie
w
 t
h
e 
p
ro
g
re
ss

 o
f 
th
e 
tr
an

sf
o
rm

at
io
n
 r
ev
ie
w
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
si
d
er
 t
h
e 
n
ex
t 
st
ep

s 
to
 

b
ri
n
g
 th

e 
re
vi
ew

 t
o
 a
 c
lo
se
  

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 o
f F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 C
or
po
ra
te
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 M
ed
iu
m
 

 

D
at
e 
 N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 

C
o
m
m
en

ts
 T
he
 b
en
ef
its
 tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
is
 s
til
l o
ng
oi
ng
 w
ith
 th
e 
cu
rr
en
t f
oc
us
 o
n 
th
e 
lin
k 
w
ith
 o
ur
 h
ou
si
ng
 p
ro
vi
de
rs
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 fu
ll 
su
pp
or
t a
nd
 a
dv
ic
e 

is
 g
iv
en
 to
 o
ur
 c
us
to
m
er
s.
 T
he
 te
am
s 
co
nt
in
ue
 to
 g
at
he
r 
th
e 
de
m
an
d 
an
d 
ar
e 
lo
ok
in
g 
to
 w
or
k 
w
ith
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 m
or
e 
co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 s
er
vi
ce
 

to
 r
es
id
en
ts
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 in
co
m
e 
is
 m
ax
im
is
ed
. T
he
 m
an
ag
em
en
t t
ea
m
 a
nd
 S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
 B
oa
rd
 r
ec
ei
ve
 r
eg
ul
ar
 u
pd
at
es
 a
nd
 p
re
se
nt
at
io
ns
 o
n 
th
e 

en
ha
nc
em
en
ts
 a
nd
 im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 to
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
an
d 
an
y 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
si
on
 w
ill
 b
e 
ba
se
d 
on
 c
le
ar
 e
vi
de
nc
e 
th
at
 th
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
 

be
tte
r 
se
rv
ic
e 
to
 th
e 
cu
st
om
er
.  

 

Page 10



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

1

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

re
p

o
rt

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

 

Page 11



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.3

B
ef

o
re

 I 
g

iv
e 

m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

5

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

6

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
10

F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
3

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
14

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 D
ra

ft
 le

tt
er

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

7

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

 -
 A

ud
it 

fo
r 

th
e 

 y
ea

r 
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

17

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

20

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
23

      

Page 12



K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
ar

is
es

 t
h

e 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
20

11
/1

2 
au

d
it

 w
h

ic
h

 is
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. I

t
in

cl
u

d
es

 t
h

e 
m

es
sa

g
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

au
d

it
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
th

e 
w

o
rk

 I 
h

av
e 

u
n

d
er

ta
ke

n
 t

o
 a

ss
es

s 
yo

u
r 

ar
ra

n
g

em
en

ts
 t

o
 s

ec
u

re
 v

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 in

 y
o

u
r 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
.

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
s 

at
 1

8 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
I e

xp
ec

t t
o 

is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

. 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
w

er
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
nd

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 I 

ex
pe

ct
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 b
e 

au
di

te
d 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
de

ad
lin

e 
of

 3
0 

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 w
er

e 
w

el
l p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

no
 m

at
er

ia
l a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 w

er
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 T

hi
s 

ye
ar

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 u
si

ng
 a

n 
ex

ce
l w

or
kb

oo
k 

fo
rm

at
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 h
el

pe
d 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
er

s 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 h
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
a 

go
od

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
.  

 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 (
V

F
M

) 

 I 
ex

pe
ct

 to
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

th
at

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 y
ou

r 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

In
 2

01
1/

12
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

lie
d 

le
ss

 o
n 

ba
la

nc
es

 th
an

 p
la

nn
ed

 a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f s

av
in

gs
 it

 h
ad

 fo
re

ca
st

.  
G

en
er

al
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
s 

ar
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
he

al
th

y 
an

d 
w

el
l a

bo
ve

 th
e 

m
in

im
um

 le
ve

l s
et

 b
y 

th
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 in

 
its

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
th

at
 la

rg
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 y
ea

rs
.  

It 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
or

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

ls
t m

ak
in

g 
th

es
e 

sa
vi

ng
s.

   

T
he

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

n 
de

pe
nd

s 
on

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 ‘s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
’ a

nd
 ‘t

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n’
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 la
rg

e 
sa

vi
ng

s.
  D

ue
 to

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
ra

di
ca

l a
pp

ro
ac

h 
be

in
g 

ta
ke

n,
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ris
ks

 o
f n

on
 d

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

fr
om

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

ar
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 s

pe
ci

fy
 in

 a
dv

an
ce

.  
T

he
re

fo
re

 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 s
av

in
gs

 p
la

n 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

ns
up

po
rt

ed
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

ris
k 

an
d 

fo
r 

re
po

rt
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
av

in
gs

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
an

d 
ro

bu
st

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

3
 

Page 13



In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
ls

 o
f b

al
an

ce
s 

an
d 

be
ca

us
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 r

em
ov

in
g 

re
cu

rr
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
fr

om
 it

s 
ba

se
 b

ud
ge

t, 
I c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

fin
an

ci
al

ly
 r

es
ili

en
t f

or
 th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

.  
It 

is
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

lly
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 o
pe

ra
te

s 
an

d 
is

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

  

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

I e
xp

ec
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

w
or

k 
an

d 
re

po
rt

 m
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

to
 m

an
ag

em
en

t b
y 

26
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 I 

pl
an

 to
 is

su
e 

m
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 b

y 
28

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

4
 

Page 14



B
ef

o
re

 I 
g

iv
e 

m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

M
y 

re
p

o
rt

 in
cl

u
d

es
 o

n
ly

 m
at

te
rs

 o
f 

g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 in
te

re
st

 t
h

at
 h

av
e 

co
m

e 
to

 m
y 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

 in
 

p
er

fo
rm

in
g

 m
y 

au
d

it
. I

 h
av

e 
n

o
t 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 m

y 
au

d
it

 t
o

 id
en

ti
fy

 a
ll 

m
at

te
rs

 t
h

at
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

to
 y

o
u

. 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 

I c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

's
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

au
di

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

1 
(r

ev
is

ed
) 

- 
In

te
gr

ity
, 

O
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
. 

I a
m

 n
ot

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 n

ew
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 th
at

 m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
 o

r 
m

e,
 th

at
 I 

am
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 a

ud
iti

ng
 a

nd
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

ha
s 

no
t u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
an

y 
no

n-
au

di
t w

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

du
rin

g 
20

11
/1

2.

I a
sk

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

to
: 

!
 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

(a
pp

en
di

x 
2)

, o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

be
fo

re
 I 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

; a
nd

 
!

 
ag

re
e 

yo
ur

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 (
ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

).
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

5
 

Page 15



F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 a

n
n

u
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

ar
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
t 

m
ea

n
s 

b
y 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
it

s 
st

ew
ar

d
sh

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 f

u
n

d
s.

 A
s 

el
ec

te
d

 M
em

b
er

s 
yo

u
 h

av
e 

fi
n

al
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

es
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

t 
is

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

th
at

 y
o

u
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 m

y 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
b

ef
o

re
 

yo
u

 a
d

o
p

t 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

an
n

u
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
ta

te
m

en
t.

 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

, I
 p

la
n 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
co

nt
ai

ns
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 m
y 

dr
af

t a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

. 

T
he

 a
ud

it 
tr

ai
l f

or
 s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

as
 d

iff
ic

ul
t a

nd
 th

us
 th

is
 h

as
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 s

om
e 

de
la

y 
in

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 o

ur
 w

or
k 

in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

  I
 e

xp
ec

t t
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

is
 w

or
k 

sh
or

tly
. 

U
n

co
rr

ec
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
m

at
er

ia
l u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 e

rr
or

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

.  
 

C
o

rr
ec

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

 

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

no
 e

rr
or

s 
th

at
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
ou

t t
ur

n 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

  A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 s

ev
er

al
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
no

te
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

.  
O

ne
 a

m
en

dm
en

t w
as

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 In
co

m
e 

an
d 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

io
r 

ye
ar

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
of

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
ye

ar
s.

   

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

an
d

 m
y 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

I r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 y
ou

 in
 m

y 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

is
ks

 th
at

 I 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 m

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

n 
T

ab
le

 1
 I 

re
po

rt
 to

 
yo

u 
m

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
ag

ai
ns

t e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
ris

ks
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

6
 

Page 16



T
ab

le
 1

: 
R

is
ks

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

R
is

k
F

in
d

in
g

F
in

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

fo
rm

at
: T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
w

ay
 it

 
ge

ts
 th

e 
fin

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
le

dg
er

 in
to

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

  

I r
ev

ie
w

ed
 th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

 it
 a

ct
ua

lly
 im

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 
ac

co
un

ts
 b

ec
au

se
 v

al
id

at
io

n 
ch

ec
ks

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
in

 b
ui

lt 
in

to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 th

us
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
ar

ou
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

S
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

: I
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

at
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

us
e 

of
 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
es

en
te

d 
a 

ris
k 

ar
ou

nd
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

an
d 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

st
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

.  
 A

 jo
in

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 a

nd
 c

lo
se

 w
or

ki
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

ls
 h

ei
gh

te
ns

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

re
co

rd
in

g 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 v
er

y 
co

m
pl

ex
.  

D
iff

er
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 o

pe
ra

te
 

w
ith

in
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 in

di
vi

du
al

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
on

 
w

he
th

er
 a

 c
os

t i
s 

to
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 o
r 

no
t, 

do
w

n 
to

 v
er

y 
sm

al
l i

te
m

s.
 T

hi
s 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 a

 
co

m
pl

ic
at

ed
 a

ud
it 

tr
ai

l f
ro

m
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 to

 th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
ev

id
en

ce
.  

A
ls

o 
th

e 
w

ay
 th

at
 

th
e 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

m
ak

e 
it 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

ap
po

rt
io

ne
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
’ e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  
T

he
 

au
di

t o
f t

hi
s 

ar
ea

 th
er

ef
or

e 
to

ok
 lo

ng
er

 th
an

 p
la

nn
ed

. I
n 

ou
r 

te
st

in
g 

w
e 

di
d 

no
t i

de
nt

ify
 

an
y 

in
vo

ic
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
ra

is
ed

 in
 e

rr
or

. T
he

re
 is

 s
co

pe
 to

 s
im

pl
ify

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 e

ith
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

nn
ua

l s
er

vi
ce

 le
ve

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t e

nc
om

pa
ss

in
g 

al
l t

he
 c

os
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r 
by

 s
tr

ea
m

lin
in

g 
cu

rr
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

H
er

ita
ge

 A
ss

et
s 

 
I c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

ls
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s.

  I
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
at

 th
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

It 
is

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 to

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
th

ei
r 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 M

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

as
 y

ou
r 

au
di

to
r 

is
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pu

t a
de

qu
at

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 it

se
lf 

th
at

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tr

ol
 a

re
 b

ot
h 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

I h
av

e 
te

st
ed

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

ly
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r 

m
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

m
y 

au
di

t. 
I a

m
 n

ot
 e

xp
re

ss
in

g 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

. I
 h

av
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

: 
!

 
it 

co
m

pl
ie

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f C
IP

F
A

/S
O

LA
C

E
 D

el
iv

er
in

g 
G

oo
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k;
 a

nd
 

!
 

it 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 fr

om
 m

y 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
  A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
7

 

Page 17



I d
id

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s.

  
 O

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 
I a

m
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

to
 y

ou
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t f
in

di
ng

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 th
at

 a
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t t

o 
yo

ur
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g.
 

!
 

Q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 y

ou
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
  

!
 

M
at

te
rs

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 o
th

er
 a

ud
iti

ng
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 to
 b

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 is

su
es

 a
bo

ut
 

fr
au

d,
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, e

xt
er

na
l c

on
fir

m
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
. 

!
 

O
th

er
 a

ud
it 

m
at

te
rs

 o
f g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
in

te
re

st
  

 T
ab

le
 2

: 
O

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 
 

Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

, o
th

er
 th

an
 fo

r 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
it 

is
 n

ot
 c

le
ar

 h
ow

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 m
an

ag
in

g 
ris

k.
 S

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 a
re

 k
ey

 r
is

ks
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

es
e 

ris
ks

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 m

an
ag

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

bo
ar

d 
an

d 
ro

ut
in

e 
bu

dg
et

 r
ep

or
tin

g.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
go

od
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
us

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 a
 k

ey
 r

ol
e.

  O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

ha
ve

 d
et

er
io

ra
te

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

fo
r 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nd
 e

sc
al

at
in

g 
ris

ks
 to

 ‘t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e’
. 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
In

 th
e 

fir
st

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ha

d 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
its

 w
or

k 
an

d 
th

is
 

si
tu

at
io

n 
w

as
 c

lo
se

ly
 m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. W

ith
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f t
he

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 r
ev

is
io

ns
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

au
di

t p
la

n 
to

 fo
cu

s 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 ti
m

e 
on

 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s 

w
or

k.
  I

nt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

m
ad

e 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
st

 o
f t

he
 

ye
ar

 e
na

bl
in

g 
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

op
in

io
n 

to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t. 

 M
an

ag
em

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

sc
op

e 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t w

or
k 

in
 2

01
2/

13
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

8
 

Page 18



W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

A
lo

ng
si

de
 m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, I

 h
av

e 
al

so
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l A
ud

it 
O

ffi
ce

 o
n 

yo
ur

 W
ho

le
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

. T
he

 e
xt

en
t o

f m
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f m

y 
re

po
rt

 w
er

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l A

ud
it 

O
ffi

ce
. C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
ei

r 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 th

is
 

ye
ar

 h
av

e 
m

ea
nt

 th
at

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

W
G

A
 r

et
ur

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
lim

ite
d.

 I 
ha

ve
 n

o 
m

at
te

rs
 to

 r
ep

or
t. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

9
 

Page 19



V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

I a
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 c

o
n

cl
u

d
e 

w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g
 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 it
s 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
. T

h
is

 is
 t

h
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
.

I a
ss

es
s 

yo
ur

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
tw

o 
cr

ite
ria

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. I
n 

m
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
A

ud
it 

P
la

n 
I r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 y

ou
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 th

at
 

w
er

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 m
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
. I

 h
av

e 
se

t o
ut

 b
el

ow
 m

y 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 m

y 
w

or
k 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
ris

ks
 

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
. 

I i
nt

en
d 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 s
ta

tin
g 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 it

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 I 
in

cl
ud

e 
m

y 
dr

af
t c

on
cl

us
io

n 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1.

 

T
ab

le
 3

: 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

an
d

 m
y 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

 

C
ri

te
ri

a
R

is
k

F
in

d
in

g
s

1.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

.  

F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

11
/1

2:
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
ro

bu
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

 a
nd

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
, a

nd
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

a 
st

ab
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
po

si
tio

n 
th

at
 e

na
bl

es
 it

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 o
pe

ra
te

 fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

bl
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

La
st

 y
ea

r 
I h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
la

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

ga
ps

 in
 fu

nd
in

g 
th

at
 

ha
d 

ye
t t

o 
be

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
   

T
he

 M
T

F
P

 in
cl

ud
es

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t s

av
in

gs
.  

M
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

sa
vi

ng
 is

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
fr

om
 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n.

  T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
es

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

tim
es

ca
le

.  
I p

la
nn

ed
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
ad

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
es

e 
sa

vi
ng

s.
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 th
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

th
at

 it
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r 
20

11
/1

2.
  T

he
 le

ve
l o

f 
ba

la
nc

es
 r

em
ai

ns
 h

ea
lth

y.
  T

he
re

 w
as

 le
ss

 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 b
al

an
ce

s 
th

an
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

an
d 

th
us

 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
is

 
ye

ar
.  

La
rg

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 
20

11
/1

2.
 T

he
se

 fa
ct

or
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 o
ur

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

sh
or

t t
er

m
.  

T
he

re
 r

em
ai

n 
ga

ps
 in

 th
e 

M
T

F
P

, m
ai

nl
y 

ar
ou

nd
 

tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
he

re
 s

av
in

gs
 a

re
 a

sp
ira

tio
na

l. 
O

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

10
 

Page 20



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

11

C
ri

te
ri

a
R

is
k

F
in

d
in

g
s

ha
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 n
ot

 fo
rm

al
ly

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
da

te
.  

T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 r
is

k 
ar

ou
nd

 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 a

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
M

T
F

P
.  

  

In
 a

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 it
 is

 c
ru

ci
al

 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

cl
ea

r 
an

d 
ac

cu
ra

te
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

re
po

rt
s.

  I
t i

s 
al

so
 im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
re

 is
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
ris

k.
  W

hi
ls

t t
he

re
 is

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
ar

ou
nd

 s
av

in
gs

 
fr

om
 s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
, o

th
er

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 c

ou
nc

il 
do

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
in

 e
no

ug
h 

de
ta

il 
ar

ou
nd

 s
av

in
gs

 
pl

an
s 

or
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 d

el
iv

er
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
 k

ey
 r

is
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
.  

  

R
ou

tin
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 im

pr
ov

ed
 to

 
cl

ea
rly

 s
ho

w
 c

ha
ng

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 b

ud
ge

t 
an

d 
w

hy
.  

T
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 p
ro

fil
in

g,
 

th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
ab

le
 ‘t

ho
se

 c
ha

rg
ed

 w
ith

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

’ t
o 

cl
ea

rly
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
ris

k.
 

2.
 S

ec
u

ri
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
ha

s 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 s
ec

ur
es

 e
co

no
m

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

 

F
oc

us
 fo

r 
20

11
/1

2:
  

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
is

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

its
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ith

in
 

I u
nd

er
to

ok
 a

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ba

se
d 

on
 o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 g
ai

ne
d 

fr
om

 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

ud
its

 a
nd

 o
ur

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 w
ith

 
yo

u.
  W

e 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

ad
 

al
re

ad
y 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 m

an
y 

ar
ea

s.
  I

 fe
lt 

th
at

 a
 

ke
y 

ris
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

as
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
  I

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
its

 c
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 c
os

t r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

ac
tiv

el
y 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 m

ak
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

by
 r

em
ov

in
g 

du
pl

ic
at

ed
 p

os
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 th

at
 d

o 
no

t a
dd

 
va

lu
e,

 th
us

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
.  

 

 

Page 21



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

12

C
ri

te
ri

a
R

is
k

F
in

d
in

g
s

tig
ht

er
 b

ud
ge

ts
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

by
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 c
os

t 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 b
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
. 

yo
u 

th
at

 I 
w

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t a
s 

an
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

to
 

co
ns

id
er

 h
ow

 w
el

l t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

is
 m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
, i

m
pl

em
en

tin
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, m
ea

su
rin

g 
su

cc
es

s 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 

T
he

 b
en

ef
its

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ta
rt

ed
 

re
al

ly
 w

el
l. 

S
om

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

fic
er

s 
w

er
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
H

ub
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xp

er
t s

up
po

rt
 

to
 c

us
to

m
er

s.
  I

t w
as

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

th
at

 
th

is
 h

ad
 im

pr
ov

ed
 b

ot
h 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 
cu

st
om

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
  I

 h
av

e 
no

t s
ee

n 
an

y 
fo

rm
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
r 

re
po

rt
s 

on
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

.  
I c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t h

ad
 

de
liv

er
ed

 s
om

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l b
en

ef
its

 b
ut

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

of
 o

ut
co

m
es

 n
ee

ds
 

to
 b

e 
st

ro
ng

er
. 

 

Page 22



F
ee

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

I r
ep

o
rt

ed
 m

y 
p

la
n

n
ed

 a
u

d
it

 f
ee

 in
 t

h
e 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

. 

I w
ill

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
au

di
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fe
e.

 

T
ab

le
 4

: 
F

ee
s

 

P
la

n
n

ed
 f

ee
 2

01
1/

12
 (

£)
 

E
xp

ec
te

d
 f

ee
 2

01
1/

12
 (

£)
 

V
ar

ia
n

ce

A
ud

it 
10

6,
67

6*
 

10
6,

67
6 

0 

C
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

[d
el

et
e 

if 
no

t a
pp

lic
ab

le
] 

22
,0

00
 

22
,0

00
**

 
0 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

0 
0 

0 

T
o

ta
l

12
8,

67
6

12
8,

67
6 

0

*T
he

 a
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 r

eb
at

ed
 th

e 
fe

e 
by

 7
%

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
fe

e 
to

 £
98

,1
42

. 

**
T

he
 fe

e 
w

ill
 d

ep
en

d 
on

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 te

st
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
on

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 c
la

im
.  

T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
ng

oi
ng

.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

13
 

Page 23



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

 
IN

D
E

P
E

N
D

E
N

T
 A

U
D

IT
O

R
’S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 T
O

 T
H

E
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 O
F

 B
R

O
M

S
G

R
O

V
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
 I h

av
e 

au
di

te
d 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
 T

he
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
om

pr
is

e 
th

e 
M

ov
em

en
t i

n 
R

es
er

ve
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t, 

th
e 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 In

co
m

e 
an

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t, 
th

e 
B

al
an

ce
 S

he
et

, t
he

 
C

as
h 

F
lo

w
 S

ta
te

m
en

t, 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 In

co
m

e 
an

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 S

ta
te

m
en

t, 
th

e 
M

ov
em

en
t o

n 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
F

un
d 

an
d 

th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 th

ei
r 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

is
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 
an

d 
th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 2
01

1/
12

. 
 T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 is

 m
ad

e 
so

le
ly

 to
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
fo

r 
no

 
ot

he
r 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0.

 
 R

es
p

ec
ti

ve
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 o

f 
th

e 
C

h
ie

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ff

ic
er

 i
an

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r’s
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s,
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 p
ro

pe
r 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

, a
nd

 fo
r 

be
in

g 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. M

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

is
 to

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (

U
K

 a
nd

 Ir
el

an
d)

. 
T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

. 
 S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
 i A

m
en

d 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

tit
le

 u
se

d 
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
14

 

Page 24



po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
es

tim
at

es
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r;
 a

nd
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 I 
re

ad
 a

ll 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 n

on
-f

in
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

f I
 

be
co

m
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
pp

ar
en

t m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

r 
in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
I c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

m
y 

re
po

rt
. 

 O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
: 

! 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 o

f B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

as
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

an
d 

of
 it

s 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 a
nd

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 th
en

 e
nd

ed
; a

nd
 

! 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 p
ro

pe
rly

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 
20

11
/1

2.
 

 O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
fo

re
w

or
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
 M

at
te

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I 

re
p

o
rt

 b
y 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 

I r
ep

or
t t

o 
yo

u 
if:

 
! 

in
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
at

em
en

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 ‘D
el

iv
er

in
g 

G
oo

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
in

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t: 
a 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k’

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
by

 C
IP

F
A

/S
O

LA
C

E
 in

 J
un

e 
20

07
; 

! 
I i

ss
ue

 a
 r

ep
or

t i
n 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

te
re

st
 u

nd
er

 s
ec

tio
n 

8 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8;

 
! 

I d
es

ig
na

te
 u

nd
er

 s
ec

tio
n 

11
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

an
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

as
 o

ne
 th

at
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
it 

at
 a

 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

to
 d

ec
id

e 
w

ha
t a

ct
io

n 
to

 ta
ke

 in
 r

es
po

ns
e;

 o
r 

! 
I e

xe
rc

is
e 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
sp

ec
ia

l p
ow

er
s 

of
 th

e 
au

di
to

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 
 

I h
av

e 
no

th
in

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
th

es
e 

re
sp

ec
ts

 
 C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 a
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

in
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es

R
es

p
ec

ti
ve

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

au
d

it
o

r 
 T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
pu

tti
ng

 in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

pe
r 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, t
o 

en
su

re
 p

ro
pe

r 
st

ew
ar

ds
hi

p 
an

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, a
nd

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 r

eg
ul

ar
ly

 th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
es

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

15
 

Page 25



I a
m

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
un

de
r 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8 

to
 s

at
is

fy
 m

ys
el

f t
ha

t t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. T

he
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u 

m
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 r

el
ev

an
t c

rit
er

ia
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. 
 I r

ep
or

t i
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 h
av

e 
co

m
e 

to
 m

y 
at

te
nt

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

re
ve

nt
 m

e 
fr

om
 c

on
cl

ud
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. I

 a
m

 n
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r,
 n

or
 h

av
e 

I c
on

si
de

re
d,

 w
he

th
er

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
 S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ar
ra

n
g

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

in
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
 

I h
av

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 m
y 

au
di

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
, p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
1,

 a
s 

to
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r:

 
! 

se
cu

rin
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
; a

nd
 

! 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 s
ec

ur
es

 e
co

no
m

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 

 T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

cr
ite

ria
 a

s 
th

os
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r 
m

e 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 s

at
is

fy
in

g 
m

ys
el

f 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2.

 
 I p

la
nn

ed
 m

y 
w

or
k 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e.
 B

as
ed

 o
n 

m
y 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

I u
nd

er
to

ok
 s

uc
h 

w
or

k 
as

 I 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 
fo

rm
 a

 v
ie

w
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
, i

n 
al

l s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

es
pe

ct
s,

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ha

d 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
pr

op
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 m
y 

w
or

k,
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
1,

 I 
am

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
, i

n 
al

l s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

es
pe

ct
s,

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

pr
op

er
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 it
s 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

D
el

ay
 in

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 

I c
an

no
t f

or
m

al
ly

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
au

di
t a

nd
 is

su
e 

an
 a

ud
it 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 u

nt
il 

I h
av

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

w
or

k 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 is

su
e 

m
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
st

at
em

en
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

pa
ck

. I
 a

m
 s

at
is

fie
d 

th
at

 th
is

 w
or

k 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

a 
m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
r 

on
 m

y 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 

 E
liz

ab
et

h 
C

av
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

16
 

Page 26



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 D
ra

ft
 le

tt
er

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  
- 

A
u

d
it

 f
o

r 
th

e 
 y

ea
r 

 e
n

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

I c
on

fir
m

 to
 th

e 
be

st
 o

f m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
be

lie
f, 

ha
vi

ng
 m

ad
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 o

th
er

 d
ire

ct
or

s 
of

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il,

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 to

 y
ou

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2.

  

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 

I h
av

e 
fu

lfi
lle

d 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

(E
ng

la
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
1 

an
d 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 w

hi
ch

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 y

ou
, a

nd
 fo

r 
m

ak
in

g 
ac

cu
ra

te
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 to

 y
ou

.  

U
n

co
rr

ec
te

d
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 

T
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 s
um

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 th

e 
at

ta
ch

ed
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

ar
e 

no
t m

at
er

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

ei
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 o

r 
in

 a
gg

re
ga

te
.  

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
ec

o
rd

s 

I h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
al

l r
el

ev
an

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

er
so

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 y
ou

r 
au

di
t. 

I h
av

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 a
nd

 
re

co
rd

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
ll 

th
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

I h
av

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

 

Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

 

I a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
si

gn
, i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
 o

r 
er

ro
r.

 

I a
ls

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

: 
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
17

 

Page 27



!
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 fr
au

d,
 o

r 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
au

d,
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

ei
th

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
ol

es
 in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
r 

ot
he

rs
 

w
he

re
 fr

au
d 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
;  

!
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
lle

ga
tio

ns
 o

f f
ra

ud
, o

r 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
au

d,
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

en
tit

y’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 b

y 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 fo
rm

er
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

na
ly

st
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

or
s 

or
 o

th
er

s;
 a

nd
 

!
 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f o
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 r
is

k 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 fr
au

d.
 

 A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 e
st

im
at

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

es
 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e.
  

R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
al

l t
he

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 
aw

ar
e.

  I
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

su
ch

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

od
e.

 
S

u
b

se
q

u
en

t 
ev

en
ts

I h
av

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r 
or

 d
is

cl
os

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 e
ve

nt
s 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 to

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

18
 

Page 28



  S
ig

ne
d 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 th
is

 le
tte

r 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
26

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. 

 S
ig

ne
d:

  

N
am

e 
Ja

yn
e 

P
ic

ke
rin

g 

P
os

iti
on

: E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 

D
at

e:
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

19
 

Page 29



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
A

n
n

u
al

 A
u

d
it

 L
et

te
r 

 

Le
tte

r 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

af
te

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t t
ha

t s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

au
di

t w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ud

ito
rs

’ w
or

k.
  

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

is
su

es
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

[a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
n]

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

po
lic

ie
s 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 c

om
pr

is
es

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

an
 a

ud
ito

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
  

A
u

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
 

A
 b

od
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
)

T
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 a

ud
ito

rs
. I

ts
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f a
ud

iti
ng

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
au

di
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 
in

 th
e 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

20
 

Page 30



A
u

d
it

o
r(

s)

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  

C
o

d
e 

(t
h

e)

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 P

ar
lia

m
en

t. 
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 (
th

e)

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
.  

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
(E

S
) 

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
nt

eg
rit

y 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

uc
t o

f a
ud

its
 a

nd
 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

.  

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

, w
hi

ch
 r

ep
or

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

(E
ng

la
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
1 

an
d 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

G
ro

u
p

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

  

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f a

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

its
 s

ub
si

di
ar

ie
s,

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

an
d 

jo
in

tly
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
en

tit
ie

s.
 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

T
he

 w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
op

er
at

io
ns

, i
nt

er
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

L
A

S
A

A
C

: 
L

o
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
S

co
tl

an
d

) 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

21
 

Page 31



M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

T
he

 A
P

B
 d

ef
in

es
 th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 a

s 
‘a

n 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 r

el
at

iv
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

or
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 m

at
te

r 
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

ts
 o

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
s 

of
 a

n 
ad

dr
es

se
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
to

r’s
 r

ep
or

t; 
lik

ew
is

e 
a 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r 
in

flu
en

ce
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f a
ny

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

rim
ar

y 
st

at
em

en
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 it

em
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

em
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
is

 n
ot

 c
ap

ab
le

 o
f g

en
er

al
 m

at
he

m
at

ic
al

 d
ef

in
iti

on
, a

s 
it 

ha
s 

bo
th

 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s’

.  

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce

T
he

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f ‘

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e’

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. S

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ot
h 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
as

pe
ct

s.
  

T
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
ho

se
 e

nt
ru

st
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

hi
s 

te
rm

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

its
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts

A
 p

ro
je

ct
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

U
K

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
on

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
. T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
us

t s
ub

m
it 

a 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

pa
ck

 to
 th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
hi

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n,
 b

ut
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

fr
om

, i
ts

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

22
 

Page 32



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 1

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s:
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l s
ho

ul
d 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
w

ay
 it

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
sh

ar
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 s
im

pl
ify

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h 

D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 2

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
:  

m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

.  
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

in
g 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
ac

tio
ns

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h 

D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 3

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it:
  T

he
 s

co
pe

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 w
or

k 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d.

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
M

ed
iu

m
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

23
 

Page 33



D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 4

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g:

  t
he

 tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 d

et
ai

l a
ro

un
d 

sa
vi

ng
s 

an
d 

in
 y

ea
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

es
e.

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h 

D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 5

H
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n:

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 fo

rm
al

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 s
te

ps
 to

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 to
 a

 c
lo

se
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
M

ed
iu

m
 

D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

24
 

Page 34



If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
fo

r 
th

e 
so

le
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

. A
ud

ito
rs

 a
cc

ep
t n

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
: 

!
 

an
y 

di
re

ct
or

/m
em

be
r 

or
 o

ffi
ce

r 
in

 th
ei

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

; o
r 

 
!

 
an

y 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

.  
            

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
20

12
 

  

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

BENEFITS INVESTIGATIONS    April – September 2012 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder   
Portfolio Holder Consulted   
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas, Head of Finance 

and Resources 
Wards Affected All Wards 
Ward Councillor Consulted  
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

To advise Members on the performance of the Benefits Services Fraud 
Investigation service.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that 
 
 subject to any comments, the report be noted. 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
3.1 There are no specific financial implications. 
 
 Legal Implications 
 
3.2 There are no specific legal implications. 
 
 Service/Operational Implications  
 
3.3 Within the Finance and Resources Service there is a dedicated counter 

fraud team whose purpose is to prevent and deter fraud as well as 
investigate any suspicions of fraudulent activity against the Authority.  
This report gives performance information for the team from 1 April to 
30 September 2012. 

 
 Background 
 
3.4 The Benefits Service decides entitlement to Housing Benefit and 

Council Tax Benefit in the local area. During the period April 2012 to 
September 2012  there were around 5680 live benefit claims at anyone 
time and on average there were 58 new claims and 271 change in 
circumstances decided each week. Direct expenditure on Housing 
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit for the year up to the end of August 
was £11,876,813.  About 45% of the caseload is made up of people of 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

working age which results in a large number of claims from customers 
who are moving in and out of work and also claiming other out of work 
benefits. Although measures have been put in place to make this 
transition easier for customers, it remains an area of risk of fraud 
entering the system. As both Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit 
are means tested benefits there are potential financial incentives to 
under declare income and savings or not to report a partner who is 
working.   

 
3.5    The Fraud Team comprises a manager, two investigation officers and a 

support officer.  All the team have completed the nationally recognised 
best practice qualifications in Professionalism in Security (PinS) 
appropriate to their role.  

  
Activity 
 
3.6 During the period this report covers 67 fraud referrals were received by 

the team. 
 
3.7 Approximately 51% of the referrals came from data-matching, the 

majority of these through the Housing Benefit Matching Service which 
is a scheme run nationally for Local Authorities by the Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP).  Our live benefit caseload is matched on a 
monthly basis against records relating nationally paid benefits and tax 
credits, records relating to private pensions, HMRC records to identify 
undeclared work or savings as well as Post Office post redirection 
records.  The other referrals under this category were raised as a result 
of the National Fraud Initiative.  Although data matching is an excellent 
tool in detecting fraud, some of the data that ours has been matched 
against will have changed and the matches cannot be taken to be 
correct without further investigation. 

    
3.8 Approximately 31% of the referrals were from official sources.  Apart 

from the joint working invitations received from the DWP, the majority 
of these were within Bromsgrove District Council (BDC), showing the 
value of maintaining awareness of benefit fraud with employees. 

   
3.9  The remaining, approximately 18% of the fraud referrals received 

during the period came from members of the public.  An increase in 
referrals from this source is usually experienced following reports of 
successful prosecutions in the local press, showing the value of 
issuing press releases giving the public details of the case and how to 
report suspicions of benefit fraud whenever possible.  One of the main 
concerns of customers who are being interviewed under caution for 
benefit fraud offences is that their name will be in the paper.   

 
 
3.10 Many fraud referrals relate to benefits paid by both BDC and the DWP.   

Page 38



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

In these cases, a joint approach is taken to ensure that the full extent 
of offending is uncovered and the appropriate action is taken by both 
bodies.  This also maximises staffing resources by preventing 
duplicate investigation work. 
 

3.11 38 Investigations were closed during the period and fraud or error was 
established in 31 of these.  

  
3.12 3 customers were prosecuted.  The offences in 2 of these cases were 

related to undeclared work and the other to an undeclared partner.   
  
3.13 Cautions were accepted by 9 customers.  The offences in 4 of these 

cases related to undeclared work, a further 2 cases related to 
undeclared increases in income, 1 case related to undeclared capital, 1 
to an undeclared partner and the other to an undeclared change in a 
non-dependant’s income. 

  
3.14 Administrative penalties were accepted by 5 customers.  The offences 

in 4 of these cases related to undeclared work and the other to 
undeclared capital. 

 
3.15 The remaining 14 cases were closed for other reasons.  Most of these 

were classed as claimant error, meaning that an overpayment of 
benefit had been identified but there was insufficient evidence to justify 
taking the case any further.  The alleged fraud in 2 cases, although 
found to be true did not result in overpayments of benefit.  Both of 
these cases related to undeclared Carer’s Allowance and although 
additional income was established to be going into the household, the 
entitlement to Carer’s Allowance means that the Carer Premium is 
payable on the claim and as a result there is no net loss.  Outcomes 
such as these will be taken into consideration when deciding whether 
similar cases should be accepted for investigation in future.  Although 
fraud was not proven on a further claim, the claim came to an end and 
the investigation was considered to be the causal link of this.  

 
  
 Impact on other areas 
 
3.16 Fraud investigation can impact upon other areas of benefit 

administration. The biggest impact is upon overpaid Housing Benefit 
and excess payments of Council Tax Benefit. For the year up until the 
end of September 2012 the team identified £85,180.51in overpaid 
Housing Benefit and excess Council Tax Benefit. Some of these 
overpayments can be extremely large and can distort the apparent 
recovery rate of overpayments. 

 
   
 
 

Page 39



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

Future plans 
 

3.17 The Welfare Reform Act received Royal Assent on the 8th March 2012 
and will have far reaching consequences. There are changes to Housing 
Benefit from April 2013 and Council Tax Benefit will be replaced by local 
schemes. Also from April 2013 the grant towards Discretionary Housing 
Payments will increase substantially and discretionary social fund 
payments, currently decided by DWP, will be replaced with local 
schemes. From October 2013 Universal Credit will gradually replace 
Income Support, Income based Job Seekers Allowance, income based 
Employment Support Allowance, Housing Benefit, Working Tax Credit 
and Child Tax Credit. 

 
3.18 To support these changes the DWP propose combining the various fraud 

services into a Single Investigation Service (SFIS) which will combine 
local authority benefit fraud investigation staff with those of the DWP and 
Revenues and Customs. 4 pilot sites for the Service were due to 
commence during November 2012 and regular updates from these 
should soon commence.  All benefit fraud investigation work will be 
branded as SFIS between April 2013 and March 2014.  During this time 
local authority investigators will continue to be employed by the councils 
that they currently work for and unless involved in a pilot or pathfinder 
site will continue to work to current procedures.  The final rollout of SFIS 
will take place between April 2014 and March 2015. 
 

3.19 Consideration is also being given to the investigation of claims from April 
2013 under Local Council Tax Reduction schemes.  It is clear that the 
investigation of these claims will not fall within the remit of SFIS and will 
be the responsibility of the local authority.  It is hoped that data will be 
able to be shared with SFIS in order for both teams to work together and 
possibly extend this to other areas of work generally covered by local 
authorities, for example tenancy fraud.   

 
 

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  
 
 None specific. 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 Without adequate performance monitoring arrangements there is a risk 

that the Benefits Service could lose subsidy and that additional costs 
could be incurred.  In addition, without effective counter fraud activity 
increased numbers of claims where no or reduced entitlement would 
remain in payment and add to the service cost. 

 
 
 
 

Page 40



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 
 Sanctions comparison compared to other districts in the County. 
  
 Example cases 
 
 SFIS Frequently asked questions  
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Teresa Kristunas 
E Mail: teresa.kristunas@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext: 3295 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
APPENDIX 1  
 
 
County investigation and sanction comparison  
April 2011 – March 2012 
 

Description Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

            

No. of Investigations closed       

Bromsgrove 45 90 31 14 180 

Malvern Hills 20 26 20 20 86 

Redditch 85 84 83 74 326 

Worcester 40 59 48 50 197 

Wychavon 26 31 45 30 132 

Wyre Forest 62 58 52 49 221 

No. of Cautions accepted       

Bromsgrove 15 17 8 6 46 

Malvern Hills 3 6 5 4 18 

Redditch 6 9 11 17 43 

Worcester 6 12 7 10 35 

Wychavon 4 8 9 6 27 

Wyre Forest 3 1 2 1 7 

No. of Admin Penalties accepted       

Bromsgrove 2 2 2 1 7 

Malvern Hills 0 0 1 4  5 

Redditch 1 1 1 0 3 

Worcester 1 5 1 0  7 

Wychavon 2 3 2 0  7 

Wyre Forest 2 1 3 2 8 
No. of Prosecutions 
successful           

Bromsgrove 1 1 0 2 4 

Malvern Hills 6 2 0 0 8 

Redditch 4 2 6 5 17 

Worcester 0 0 4 10 14 

Wychavon 4 1 1 6 12 

Wyre Forest 8 4 6 6 24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

 
County investigation and sanction comparison  
April 2012 – September 2012 
  

Description Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 
            

No. of Investigations closed       
Bromsgrove 18 21     39 
Malvern Hills Not available        
Redditch 67 78     145 
Worcester Not available          
Wychavon Not available          
Wyre Forest Not available        

No. of Cautions accepted       
Bromsgrove 2 7     9 
Malvern Hills 5     5  
Redditch 11 12     23 
Worcester                  19     19  
Wychavon 6      8 
Wyre Forest Not available        

No. of Admin Penalties accepted       
Bromsgrove 3 2     5 
Malvern Hills 0       0  
Redditch 0 0     0 
Worcester 3       3  
Wychavon 3       3  
Wyre Forest Not available        
No. of Prosecutions 
successful           
Bromsgrove 2 1     3 
Malvern Hills  5       5 
Redditch 3 5     8 
Worcester 14     14  
Wychavon   4     4  
Wyre Forest Not available        

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 
Example cases. 
 
360064943 
 
A 53 year old man was prosecuted for falsely claiming Housing Benefit, 
Council Tax Benefit, Carer’s Allowance and Jobseeker’s Allowance by failing 
to declare that he had returned to work.  
 
The referral on this case came from the Benefit Team after suspicion was 
raised when the customer’s partner visited the Hub. The DWP were invited to 
join the investigation as the suspected fraud was also likely to affect the 
Carer’s Allowance and Job Seeker’s Allowance which he had also been 
claiming.  As is usual in most cases of joint working the prosecution was lead 
by the DWP who now prosecute through the Crown Prosecution Service. 
 
The investigation established that although the customer had been made 
redundant he had been employed again by the same company not long 
afterwards and had failed to notify either Bromsgrove District Council or the 
Department for Work and Pensions of this.  
 
Overpayments of £4,892.23 Housing Benefit, £1,452.90 Council Tax Benefit, 
£6,112.05 Carer’s Allowance and £484.95 Jobseeker’s Allowance were 
identified. 
 
The customer was sentenced to a 12 month community order with a 
requirement to carry out 100 hours unpaid work.   
 
The Housing Benefit overpayment is being recovered from current ongoing 
correct entitlement at £20.65 weekly and the Council Tax Benefit 
overpayment has been returned to the Council Tax account for recovery. 
 
 
360056455 
 
A 66 year old man who was falsely claimed Housing Benefit of £2,850.85 and 
Council Tax Benefit of £1,830.20 accepted an administrative penalty as an 
alternative to prosecution. 
 
This case had been referred for investigation by the Benefit Team previously 
because the Housing Benefit payable left a large shortfall against the rent 
being charged on the property that the customer chose to live in.  No 
evidence could be found to prove any offences at that time and the customer 
denied having any additional income or capital.  This investigation was started 
after the customer volunteered information that he had been claiming 
incorrectly as he had inherited over £50,000 more than 2 years earlier. 
 

Page 44



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

Prosecution would normally have been considered as the appropriate 
sanction in this case, particularly in view of the denials the customer had 
made in previous investigations which had taken place since he had received 
the inheritance.  However, the customer was leaving the property and going 
abroad and it was therefore considered more appropriate to offer the penalty 
with a condition of full payment which was made upon acceptance. 
 
 
360106945 
 
A 19 year old man accepted a caution after falsely claiming Housing Benefit of 
£544.19 and Council Tax Benefit of £33.51 by failing to declare that he was 
no longer receiving Jobseeker’s Allowance and was working. 
  
This referral was received through the Housing Benefit Matching Service after 
a match against Jobseeker’s Allowance records identified the discrepancy.  
 
 
360034656 
 
A data match was received on an 80 year old man identifying an undeclared 
private pension.  The claim had been in payment for a number of years but as 
the pension was in respect of the customer’s late wife and no  
claim forms had been completed since the pension started, it was  
considered inappropriate to take any further action than recovery of the  
overpaid benefit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

 
APPENDIX 3 
 

SFIS FAQs 
 
Q. How will SFIS directly affect staff terms and conditions? 
A. Initially SFIS will be a partnership between HMRC, DWP and LAs. When SFIS 
is introduced, staff dealing with the investigation of welfare benefit fraud will 
remain employed by their current employer, for example, DWP staff will continue 
to be employed by DWP on their existing terms and conditions. The same will 
apply to LAs and HMRC staff. 
 
Q. What does SFIS Branding mean? 
A. Initially you will still operate in the same way as you do now and claimants will 
not see a difference. We want to start to create a unique identity and pave the 
way for the cultural changes that are needed for a successful implementation. 
The pilot sites will be testing the lower level detail such as who undertakes 
prosecution, how data is shared and how communications are branded. 
 
Q. What work will SFIS undertake? 
A. SFIS will be responsible for the investigation of welfare benefit fraud. As with 
any organisation, the amount of resource will dictate the number of investigations 
which can be undertaken, in the same way that each of your organisations 
currently decides which work will be given to your fraud team and your 
compliance/administration teams. The pilots will be testing a number of 
collaborative approaches, which includes a joint prosecution policy that will feed 
into the final policy for national? Or further pilot? roll out. We will be working with 
partners to look at how we join up activity across other fraud areas, for example 
Local Council Tax Support.  
 
Q. Will SFIS staff, regardless of employer, be located in the same office and 
which office will this be? 
A. Our four SFIS pilots are currently testing a number of models and one of these 
does have a centralised team of DWP and Local Authority (LA) staff based in LA 
accommodation. Feedback from the pilots will allow us to evaluate the benefits 
and costs of these different models and then agree the design for national rollout. 
We are aware that in many areas the current DWP FIS teams do not match with 
LA boundaries so we may see slightly different arrangements in different 
locations. As this work progresses, we will share information with you. 
 
Q. How can I get some more information on SFIS? 
A. We issue a bi-monthly newsletter which provides updates on the Fraud & Error 
Programme. We are also developing a Communications Hub which will allow all 
our stakeholders to access the most up to date information and will also offer the 
opportunity to ask questions. More information about this will be available soon. 

Page 46



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 
 

Within the DWP Fraud Investigation Service (FIS) community, progress on the 
Fraud & Error Programme is discussed at each 6-weekly Area Fraud 
Investigators meeting and a monthly FIS update note is also cascaded to all staff 
and placed on the FIS internal website. FIS colleagues have the opportunity to 
raise questions (and have them answered!) at FIS Your Call events and on the 
FIS Discussion Group on the DWP FIS Intranet pages. 
 
Q. Will we be working under SFIS policy and procedure from April 2013? 
A. Presently if you are not in a Pilot or Pathfinder site, the SFIS policy and 

procedure will come into force during 2014/15. 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

THE 2013/14 DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN REPORT OF THE SERVICE 
MANAGER OF THE WORCESTERSHIRE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Roger Hollingworth 
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   Head of Resources 
Ward(s) Affected All Wards 
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 To present: 

! the Bromsgrove District Council Draft Internal Audit Operational Plan for 
2013/14 for noting. 

! to confirm the key performance indicators for the Worcestershire Internal 
Audit Shared Service for 2013/14 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1! The Board is asked to RESOLVE that the report be noted.!

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

Legal Implications

3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 to “undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control”. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

To aid compliance with the regulation, the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006 details that “Internal 
Audit work should be planned, controlled and recorded in order to determine 
priorities, establish and achieve objectives and ensure the effective and efficient 
use of audit resources”. 

Service / Operational Implications

Internal Audit Aims and Objectives

3.3 The aims and objectives of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service are 
to:

! examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 
control and risk management across the council and recommend 
arrangements to address weaknesses as appropriate;

! examine, evaluate and report on arrangements to ensure compliance with 
legislation and the council’s objectives, policies and procedures;

! examine, evaluate and report on procedures to check that the council’s assets 
and interests are adequately protected and effectively managed;

! undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity 
in accordance with council policies and procedures and relevant legislation; 
and

! advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other 
organisational changes e.g. transformation.

Formulation of Annual Plan

 The Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14, which is included at Appendix 1, is a risk based 
plan which takes into account the adequacy of the council’s risk management, 
performance management and other assurance processes.  It has been based upon the 
risk priorities per discussions with the s151 Officer and Heads of Service as well as an 
independent risk assessment of the audit universe by Internal Audit.  The Internal Audit 
Plan for 2013/14 has been agreed with the council’s section 151 officer. 

 By bringing a provisional plan of work to Members at this stage of the planning process it 
allows Members to have a positive input into the audit work programme for 2013/14 and 
make suggestions as to where they feel audit resources should be directed.  As with all 
plans it may subject to review as the year progresses in consultation with the s151 
Officer.

Page 50



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

Resource Allocation

 The Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 has been based upon a resource allocation of 300 
chargeable days, a resource allocation which has been agreed with the council’s s151 
officer.  The Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service is 
confident that, with this resource allocation, he can provide management, external audit 
and those charged with governance with the assurances and coverage that they require 
over the system of internal control, annual governance statement and statement of 
accounts.  The 300 day allocation is based on transactional type system audits.  
Enhanced audit requirements would require reallocation or additional audit days. Any 
such requirement and the implications can be further discussed at the Audit Board 
meeting.  Additional areas that could be considered for auditing but have not been 
included in the draft plan have been identified at the foot of the draft plan for 
information/consideration purposes. 

The draft Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 is set out at Appendix 1.

Monitoring and reporting of performance against the Plan

! Operational progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2013/14 will be closely 
monitored by the Service Manager of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 
and will be reported to the Shared Service’s Client Officer Group, which comprises the 
s151 officers from client organisations, on a quarterly basis and to the Audit Board on a 
quarterly basis. 

 The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be determined by the 
performance against a set of key performance indicators which have been developed for 
the service.  These have been agreed with the council’s s151 officer and are included at 
Appendix 2.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

 There are no implications arising out of this report. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1     The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

failure to complete the planned programme of audit work within the financial year; 
and,

the continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained. 

Page 51



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

 These risks are being managed via the 4Risk risk management system within the 
Finance and Resources risk area. 

5. APPENDICES

   Appendix 1 ~ Outline Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 
   Appendix 2 ~ Key performance indicators 2013/14 
    

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

7. KEY

N/a

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:   Andy Bromage 
Service Manager - Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 

E Mail:  andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk 
Tel:       01905 722051 

Page 52



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!
DETAILED PROVISIONAL AUDIT PLAN FOR 2013/14         APPENDIX 1
      

   

Audit Area Source Planned days 
2012/13

Planned days 
2013/14

Difference   = 
+ or - 

A – CHARGEABLE AND PRODUCTIVE 

Core Financial Systems       

Benefits Risk assessment score 36 15 15 0 

NDR Risk assessment score 36 12 12 0 

Council Tax Risk assessment score 33 12 12 0 
General Ledger, Budget Control & Bank 
Reconciliations 

Risk assessment score 33 21 17 -4 

Treasury Management Risk assessment score 30 7 7 0 

Creditors Risk assessment score 29 7 10 3 

Debtors Risk assessment score 28 7 7 0 

Asset Management Risk assessment score 26 7 7 0 

88 87 -1

Corporate     0 

Shared Service Delivery (Client) Risk assessment score 36 15 12 -3 

ICT Risk assessment score 35 14 14 0 
Corporate Governance  (Health & Safety, 
Media & Comm's, Performance Indicators & 
data quality ) 

Risk assessment score 31 10 10 0 

Risk Management Risk assessment score 31 15 15 0 

s106's Risk assessment score 31 0 10 10 

Transitional (Critical friend) Section 151 request 15 7 -8 

69 68 -1

P
age 53



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

Audit Area Source Planned days 
2012/13

Planned days 
2013/14

Difference   = 
+ or -

Other Systems Audits 0

Environmental Enforcement Risk assessment score 33 0 8 8 

Depot and Stores Risk assessment score 32 0 10 10 

Development & Building Control Risk assessment score 29 0 8 8 

Regulatory Services Risk assessment score 28 0 15 15 

Land Charges Risk assessment score 28 0 8 8 

BURT Dial a Ride Risk assessment score 28 0 7 7 

Strategic Housing Risk assessment score 27  0 8 8 

Completion of Prior Year’s work N/A 12 10 -2 

Statement of Internal Control N/A 3 3 0 

Follow Up on recommendations N/A 10 12 2 

Fraud and Special Investigations  N/A 8 10 2 

Advisory / Consultancy / Contingency N/A 10 10 0 

   

TOTAL PRODUCTIVE (A ONLY) 266 264

B – CHARGEABLE AND NON-PRODUCTIVE 

Audit Management Meetings N/A 15 15 

Corporate Meetings / Reading N/A 5 5 

Annual Plans and Reports N/A 8 8 

Audit Board support N/A 6 8 

2

TOTAL CHARGEABLE AND NON-
PRODUCTIVE (B) 34 36 2

TOTAL CHARGEABLE (A + B) 300 300 0

P
age 54



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

Potential Areas for Auditing for information/consideration 

Audit Area Source  Planned days 
2013/14 

Sports and Arts Development Risk assessment score 30 To be considered 

Insurance Risk assessment score 28 To be considered 

Election Services  Risk assessment score 27 To be considered 

Communications and Media Risk assessment score 27 To be considered 

Member Development & Allowances Risk assessment score 27 To be considered 

Grounds Maintenance Risk assessment score 26 To be considered 

Equality and Diversity Risk assessment score 23 To be considered 

P
age 55



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

SUMMARY OF DETAILED PROVISIONAL PLAN 2013/14
Planned Days for 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

Core Financial Systems 49 48 

Revenues and Benefits 39 39 

Corporate Work 69 68 

Other Systems Audits inc follow up 79 79 

Completion of prior year's work 12 10 
Advisory / Consultancy inc NFI, Fraud & 
investigations 18 20 

       

Sub Total 266 264     

       

Audit management meetings 15 15     

Corporate meetings / reading 5 5     

Annual plans and reports 8 8     

Audit Board support 6 8     

       

Sub Total 34 36     

   
TOTAL Audit Days  

300 300     

P
age 56



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 
!

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2013/14                                                             APPENDIX 2

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against the following key performance indicators for 
2013/14.

 KPI Target Frequency of 
reporting

1 % Plan delivered 
excluding overruns 

90% for 
year

Quarterly

2 Customer 
satisfaction surveys 

90%
Good or 
above

Quarterly

3 Number of audits 
delivered compared 
to plan 

19 Quarterly

4 Annual survey of 
Internal Audit 
Service

Good or 
above

Annually

The Internal Audit Self-Assessment checklist assessing compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the UK 2006 should also be completed at the end of the annual cycle.  Any areas of partial or non-compliance with
the Code should be reported as exceptions to the Client Officer Group and Audit Board. 

P
age 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 

 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13 
 
 
13th December 2012 
 

§ Audit Commission Annual Governance Report 
§ Corporate Risk Register 
§ Internal Audit Monitoring Report –  

 to include an update on the questions raised with regard to the 
 following items: 

o Housing Tenancy 
o Recruitment  

§ Individual Reports for completed audits  
§ Internal Audit Performance and Workload 
§ Benefits Investigations  
§ Risk Management  
§ Working Session / discussion on the Internal Audit Plan – Look at the 

risk calculation  
o Value for Money 
o Are service areas working / impact on customers, have services 

improved for customers following transformation and shared 
services   

 
 
14th March 2013 
 

§ Audit Commission Annual Audit Letter 
§ Audit Commission Certification of Claims & Returns 
§ Audit Commission Opinion Plan  
§ Internal Audit Monitoring Report 
§ Individual Reports for completed audits  
§ Internal Audit Performance and Workload 
§ Internal Audit DRAFT Annual Plan 2013/2014 
§ Risk Management  

 
 
To Be Allocated To Suitable Dates 
 

§ Departmental Risk Registers – High Level Actions, quarterly reports (to 
include a frontline service and a support service. 

§ Departmental Risk Registers – Detailed reports to be provided 
periodically 

§ Contracts Register – ‘due process’ update to be provided with regard to 
contracts entered into and that the Legal Services Team see all 
contracts entered into  

§ Internal Audit 3 year plan 2012/2013 – 2014/2015  

Agenda Item 8

Page 59



 BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD  13th December 2012 

 
 

§ End of Year Report from the Chairman, to include a reflective view of 
the Audit Board - March 2013? 

§ Best practice – speaker from another authority on operation of their 
member Audit review and monitoring arrangements 

Page 60



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

THE INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT OF THE SERVICE MANAGER OF 
THE WORCESTERSHIRE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Roger Hollingworth 
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 
Relevant Head of Service Teresa Kristunas   Head of Resources 
Ward(s) Affected All Wards 
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 
This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 7 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. (Appendices 3 & 4) 

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 To present: 

! the monitoring report of internal audit work and performance as at 30th November 
2012;

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Board is asked to RESOLVE that the report be noted.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

Legal Implications

3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 to “undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its 
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with the 
proper practices in relation to internal control”. 

Service / Operational Implications

3.3 The involvement of Members in progress monitoring is considered to be an 
important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal control 
assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 61



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

This section of the report provides commentary on Internal Audit’s performance 
for the period 01st April to 30th November 2012 against the performance 
indicators agreed for the service.  As discussed at the 21st June Audit Board the 
Management of data audit will be included in the 2012/13 plan as part of the 
Governance audit. This will be scheduled to be undertaken later in the financial 
year with the outcome being reported to the Audit Board in a timely manner.

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED/COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT: 

Asset Management 2011-12 (Final Report) 

The audit covered the period from April 2011 to March 2012. The audit review 
was to confirm an Asset Management Register is maintained by Bromsgrove 
District Council in accordance with current accounting regulations along with the 
valuations undertaken by Worcestershire County Council on a cyclical basis to 
provide Bromsgrove District Council with sufficient information and advice to 
enable it to write its Corporate Asset Management plan.  The audit identified that 
the Asset Management Group has authorised large value disposals; however, 
updating of acquisition and disposals on the Finance Asset Register has not 
been recorded against the asset categories of land disposals and vehicles and 
plant.  Areas of good control identified during the audit include: 

! Actions from the Asset Management Group had been assigned and 
actioned on a prompt and timely basis. 

! Assets had the depreciation charge calculated correctly.  

Assurance Level: Significant 
Final Report issued: 13th November 2012 

Treasury Management (Draft Report Stage) 
The review is a full system audit concentrating on the controls over the Treasury 
Management System. The audit did not express an opinion on the rates of 
interest obtained for individual investments/loans.  Although several “medium 
priority” recommendations have been made and will be reported to the Board 
when the management response is received there is generally a strong system 
of internal control.  Monthly reconciliations are undertaken, although at the time 
of this audit were not up to date but this has since been addressed.  Interest is 
paid and received on a timely basis and investments are made based upon cash 
flow, appropriately authorised and in accordance with the approved Counterparty 
list.

Assurance Level: Significant 
Draft Report issued: 13th November 2012 

Page 62



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

Street Scene 2012-13 (2nd Draft Report stage) 

! The review was a full system audit concentrating areas of Street Scene. Detailed 
testing of operational activities was limited to areas considered the highest 
priority for the public or the most regularly undertaken, such as fly tipping, dog 
fouling and hazardous waste.  Although there is generally a sound system of 
control in place and areas of good practice were identified (for example budget 
monitoring, publicity campaigns and priority cleansing areas) the audit found a 
couple of areas where managers are required to address identified control 
weaknesses including no performance monitoring currently undertaken and no 
schedule for street sweeping in operation. These are to be considered by 
managers to ensure that processes are in place in the future. 

The service is currently undergoing a transformation review and, therefore, the 
findings and consequential recommendations may be considered as part of this 
process.

Assurance Level: Moderate 
Draft Report issued: 16th July 2012 

  Summary of Assurance Levels: 

Audit Assurance Level
Asset Management 2011/12 Significant 
Treasury Management 2012/13 Significant 
Street Scene 2012/13 Moderate 

2012/13 AUDITS IN PROGRESS AS AT 30th November 2012

ICT   (Clearance Meeting Stage) 
The review is a full system audit focusing on inventory; replacement programme; 
IT Helpdesk; communications and monitoring. 

Debtors (Clearance Meeting Stage) 
The review is a full system audit concentrating on the controls over the debtors 
system as operated from the point where the invoice is raised to entry onto the 
main ledger. 

Parks and Open Spaces (Fieldwork Review Stage) 
The review is a limited systems review of Sanders Park concentrating on the 
areas of the pavilion and café including, income collection and contractual and 
management information. 

Page 63



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

Creditors (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full system audit concentrating on the controls over the creditors 
system as operated from the point when the purchase order is raised to the point 
the payment is recorded in the ledger. The audit will not look at the procuring of 
goods and services. 

Regulatory Services ~ Licensing Income (Fieldwork stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the Miscellaneous 
Environmental Licensing system. The review has included the granting and 
approval of licenses, renewal and enforcement, collection and payment of 
licenses and income performance monitoring. 

Council Tax (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the controls within the 
Council tax system in connection with key areas such as discounts, recovery of 
debt, write offs and system access. 

Non Domestic Rates (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the controls within the Non 
Domestic Rate system in connection with key areas such as discounts, recovery 
of debt, write offs and system access. 

Housing and Council Tax Benefits (Fieldwork Stage) 
The review is a full systems audit concentrating on the controls within the 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit system in connection with key areas such as 
overpayments, back dated claims and reconciliations. 

Cemetery and Crematorium (on hold) 
The review will be a full system audit which will concentrate on adherence with 
regulatory requirements, for example, documentation and authorisation; income 
collection; pursuit of debts; landscaping maintenance and management 
information.  The audit has been placed on hold for the several weeks but 
remains under regular review for recommencement at an appropriate time. 

As the above audits are in remain in progress an assurance level will be 
allocated on completion. 

3.4 AUDIT DAYS

Appendix 1 shows that progress continues to be made towards delivering the 
Internal Audit Plan and achieving the targets set for the year.  As at 

Page 64



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

30thNovember 2012 a total of 138 days had been delivered against a target of 
300 days for 2012/13. 

Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service.  These indicators 
were agreed by the Board on the 29th March 2012 for 2012/13. 

Appendix 3 shows the ‘high’ and ‘medium’ priority recommendations for those 
audits that have been completed and final reports issued. 

Appendix 4 shows an updated list of recommendations reported to the Board 
previously.  The ‘Action Tracker’ reporting mechanism has been superseded by 
Appendix 3 but will continue to be reported until the points have been satisfied.  

3.5  OTHER KEY AUDIT WORK

Much internal audit work is carried out “behind the scenes” but is not always the 
subject of a formal report. Productive audit time is accurately recorded against 
the service or function as appropriate. Examples include: 

! Governance for example assisting with the Annual Government Statement 
! Risk management 
! Transformation review providing support as a critical friend  
! Dissemination of information regarding potential fraud cases likely to 

affect the Council 
! Drawing managers’ attention to specific audit or risk issues 
! Audit advice and commentary 
! Internal audit recommendations: follow up review to analyse progress 
! Day to day audit support and advice for example control implications, etc. 
! Networking with audit colleagues in other Councils on professional points 

of practice 
! National Fraud Initiative. 
! Investigations 

Recruitment

3.6 WIASS has experienced natural turnover of staff and has also had to manage 
sickness absence during the year to date.  This has been achieved with the 
careful allocation of resource and engaging the services of agency workers to 
assist in the overall delivery of the plans to all the partners. Close monitoring of 
resource is continuing using current management information and further 
resource is being sourced to assist the delivery of the partner’s plans in relation 
to forecasted demand for the remainder of quarter 3 and quarter 4.  WIASS 
remains committed to delivering the full audit plan for Bromsgrove District 
Council and continues to take active steps to achieve this.  There is no 

Page 65



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

expectation that engaging agency workers will result in an increased contribution 
requirement from Bromsgrove District Council.
Protecting the Public Purse

3.7 Housing Tenancy:  The allocation and occupation of social housing is covered in 
the contractual arrangement between Bromsgrove District Council and the 
Bromsgrove District Housing Trust. The Housing Trust operate and apply their 
own internal arrangements and controls in order to provide tenancy 
arrangements.  It is understood that the internal controls operated within the 
Trust seek to identify any tenancy fraud with appropriate enforcement action 
taking place. Under the current agreement Internal Audit does not have right of 
access to enter the Trust, or, audit processes on behalf of Bromsgrove District 
Council therefore there is a reliance on the service level agreement in place. 

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.8 There are no implications arising out of this report. 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1      The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

failure to complete the planned programme of audit work within the financial 
year; and, 

the continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained. 

 These risks are being managed via the 4Risk risk management system within 
the Finance and Resources risk area. 

5. APPENDICES

   Appendix 1 ~ Internal Audit Plan delivery 2012/13 
   Appendix 2 ~ Key performance indicators 2012/13 
   Appendix 3 ~ ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ priority recommendations summary and 
           complete finalised reports 
   Appendix 4 ~ Action Tracker entries 
       

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Individual Internal Audit reports. 

7. KEY

Page 66



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

N/a

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:   Andy Bromage 
Service Manager - Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 

E Mail:  andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk 
Tel:       01905 722051 

Page 67



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

APPENDIX 1 

Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13
1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013

Audit Area 

DAYS 
USED 

TO
30/11/12

2012/13
PLANNED 

DAYS 
Core Financial Systems (*Note 1) 24 88 

Corporate Audits (*Note 2) 20 69 

Other Systems Audits 66 109 

TOTAL 110 266

   

Audit Management Meetings 11 15 

Corporate Meetings / Reading 3 5 

Annual Plans and Reports 3 8 

Audit Board support 6 6 

Other chargeable 5 0 

 TOTAL 28 34

 TOTAL 138 300

*Note 1 
Core Financial Systems are audited in quarters 3 and 4 in order to maximise the 
assurance provided for Annual Governance Statement and Statement of 
Accounts.

 *Note 2 
Corporate Audits to include Management of Data audit request per Audit Board 
21st June 2012.

Page 68



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD Date: 13th DECEMBER 2012 

APPENDIX 2 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 01st April 2012 to 31st March 2013.

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against 
the following key performance indicators for 2012/13. 

The Internal Audit Self-Assessment checklist assessing compliance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006 will also be 
completed at the end of the annual cycle.  Any areas of partial or non-compliance with 
the Code will be reported as exceptions to the Client Officer Group and Audit Board.

KPI Progress to 
date

(1/4/12 to 
30/11/12)

Target Frequency of 
Reporting

1 % Plan delivered excluding 
overruns

46% 90% for 
year

Quarterly

2 Customer satisfaction 
surveys

None received 
at time of 
publishing

90%
Good or 
above

Quarterly

3 Number of audits delivered 
compared to plan 

2011/12
2

2012/13
3 & 

9 in progress 

18 Quarterly 

4 Annual survey of Internal 
Audit Service 

To be 
monitored by 

the Client 
Officer Group 
throughout the 

year

Good or 
above

Annually

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 20th September 2012
	4 Audit Commission Annual Governance Report 2011 - 2012
	Appendix 1 - Audit Commission - Annual Governance Report 2011/2012 - responses
	Appendix 2 - Audit Commission - Annual Governance Report  2011/2012

	6 Benefits Investigations April - September 2012
	7 Internal Audit Manager's - Draft Audit Plan 2013 / 2014
	8 Audit Board Work Programme 2012 / 2013
	9 Internal Audit Monitoring Report
	Appendices for Agenda Item 9 - Internal Audit Monitoring Report

